
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, August 02, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Terry Roberts 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (CCD) 

2. Update on the Nix Creek Drainage Study by Public Works Director Tyler Richards. (PWD) 

CONSENT 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting July 19, 2021.  (CCD) 

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the purchase of 

chemicals for water and wastewater treatment. (TWU) Executive Director J.D. Phillips 

REGULAR 

5. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 1400 Dudley Avenue from a split zone 

of C-1 General retail commercial & R-3 Low-density residential to all C-1 General retail 

commercial in order to add an annex to a childcare facility for after-school care (Torrence). 

(PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

6. Adopt an Ordinance to revise the text and boundaries of the Entertainment District. (PWD-

Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, August 16, 2021 

ADJOURN 



 

 

2021 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmer’s Market – Every Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday 

National Night Out - Tuesday, October 5, 2021 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: August 2, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Employee Service Awards: 

 

Billy Forrester TAFD 30 Years 

Nicholas Elrod TAPD 25 Years 

Wesley Belk TWU 10 Years 

Mark Billings TWU 5 Years 
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



NIX CREEK OVERGROWTH CLEARING SHAKES ENVIRONMENTAL











BANK EROSION – ED WORREL PARK





 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting July 19, 2021.  (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: August 2, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, July 19, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Assistant Mayor Ward 3 Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, and Ward 6 Director 

Jeff Hart. 

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager E. Jay Ellington, City Attorney George Matteson, and City Clerk 

Heather Soyars. 

ABSENT: Ward 5 Director Barbara Miner and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance were given by Director Jeff Hart. 

CONSENT 

Director Roberts made the motion adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Hart.  The 

motion carried and the following items were approved: 

1. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting July 6, 2021.  (CCD) 

2. Resolution No. 2021-37 authorized the City Manager to purchase one (1) John Deere 310L 

T4 Backhoe/Loader (TWU) 

REGULAR – no items. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

 Greg Shumate, 5220 Rocky Creek Road, said he was concerned about some Emergency 

Sirens being inoperable and the catastrophe it may cause during a disaster. 

 J.M. Ramsey, 21 Arnold Drive, spoke about Nix Creek being overgrown and the flooding 

and sewer problems because of it. 

 Richard Ross, 20 Arnold Drive, also spoke about flooding caused by the overgrowth in Nix 

Creek and said the City had maintained the creek in years past. 

 Taras Summers, 22 Arnold Drive, said he was also concerned about flooding caused by the 

overgrowth of Nix Creek. 

 David Peavy, 105 Olive Street, said Nix Creek would continue to flood and the City needed 

to build retention ponds to handle flood waters. 



 

 Director Harris said he wanted more information concerning the CARES Act funding the 

City would receive.  He also stated that he welcomed public comments and concerns during 

Citizen Communication.  Director Harris also wanted to know if citizen input would be 

provided for the 5-Year Park Plan. 

 Director Jeff Hart said he also had questions concerning the funds approved for the Nix 

Creek Study. 

No one else came forward 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board entered Executive Session at 6:26 PM. 

Mayor Brown reconvened the meeting at 6:31 PM and the following action was taken: 

3. Resolution No. 2021-38 made appointments to various boards and commissions. (CCD)  

Board/Commission: Appointee: Term: 

 
Advertising & Promotion Commission 

 

Meredith Mills 03/21/2021----2025 

Airport Authority  Ray Abernathy 

 

05/14/2021----2024 

Board of Adjustment  Boots Thomas 

Bonnie Auck 

I. Don Nelson  

 

02/17/2020----2023 

02/17/2021----2024 

02/17/2021----2024 

City Beautiful Commission  Connie Magness 

 

(no set terms) 

Civil Service Commission  Pete Cheatham  

 

04/2021----2027 

Electric Board of Review Wade Williams 

Thomas Thornsberry 

  

03/06/2020----2022 

03/06/2021----2023 

Heating & Air Conditioning Board of Review Jeff Castle 

Thomas Bui 

Charlie Cook 

 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2020----2023 

Library Board  Junie Young 

Gary Nutter 

 

01/15/2020----2026 

01/15/2020----2026 

Planning Commission Boots Thomas 

Bertha Dunn 

Adger Smith 

George Coker 

Jason Dupree 

05/06/2020----2023 

05/06/2020----2023 

05/06/2021----2024 

05/06/2021----2024 

05/06/2021----2024 

 

Plumbing Board of Review Jackie Kirkland 

Cliff Roberts 

 

11/21/2019----2022 

11/21/2019----2022 

 



 

Motion to approve the resolution made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Hollibush. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this resolution. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Hart.   

The Mayor declared the resolution adopted by a vote of 6-0. 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, August 2, 2021 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Assistant Mayor Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, and Director Hart.   

The meeting adjourned at 6:34 PM. 

APPROVED this the 2nd day of August 2021. 

______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment. 

(TWU) Executive Director J.D. Phillips 

AGENDA DATE: August 2, 2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: J.D. Phillips, P.E, Executive Director 

REQUEST: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None needed. 

SUMMARY: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment, with 

budgeted funds, for fiscal year 2021-2022.  Bids were advertised, and 

twenty-four chemical specification packages were requested and mailed 

to prospective bidders in July.  Bids were received and opened at 2:00 

PM, July 13, 2021 on the following chemicals required for water and 

wastewater treatment for FY 2021-2022: Sodium Chlorite, Sulphur 

Dioxide, HTH (100# containers), Caustic Soda (bulk), Liquid Chlorine, 

Aluminum Sulfate, Ortho-Polyphosphate, Anhydrous Ammonia, Liquid 

Polymer for the Water Treatment Plant, and Liquid Polymer for the 

Waste Water Treatment Plant. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: Not to exceed amount budgeted in FY 2021-2022 budget. 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: To be approved in FY 2021-2022 budget. 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

None. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Recommendations are for the low bid price per unit, from the listed 

vendors as shown on the bid tabulation sheet – ATTH01, in an aggregate 

amount not to exceed the amount budgeted in the Texarkana Water 

Utilities, Departments 410, 420, 490, 520, 530 and 540 Operating Fund 

Budgets for FY 2021-2022. 

EXHIBITS: Chemical Bid Tabulation Sheet. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) advertised for bids for water and 

wastewater treatment chemicals and the low bid price per unit is shown on the attached bid 

tabulation sheet; and 

WHEREAS, the utility staff recommends acceptance of these bids, provided the 

aggregate amount does not exceed the amounts approved in the FY2021-2022 budget; and   

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend Board approval;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized to enter into contracts for the 

chemicals and with the suppliers for the corresponding low bids as specifically set forth on 

the attached tabulation, provided that the aggregate amounts do not exceed the amounts 

approved in the FY2021-2022 budget.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of August, 2021. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

 Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



TABULATION OF BIDS -  July 13, 2021 ATTH 01

FY 2021-2022 CHEMICAL BIDS

CHEMICAL COMPANY COST FY 2021 BID FY 2022 BIDS RECEIVED

Sodium Chlorite

Evoqua Water Technologies 

LLC                                                

2650 Tallevast Rd.                         

Sarasota, FL.  34243

$.4980                 

cost                                     

per pound

$.5050                       

cost                     

per pound

2                        

$.5060      

$.5050    

Sulphur Dioxide

DPC Industries, Inc.                     

P.O. Box 24600              

Houston, TX.  77229

$720.00                       

cost                      

per ton

$1065.00       

cost                     

per ton

1                   

$1065.00  

HTH (100# Containers)

Harcros Chemicals, Inc.       

5200 Speaker Road      

Kansas City, KS  66106

$169.00     

cost per           

100# tote

$158.00          

cost per                   

100# tote

1                       

$158.00

Caustic Soda (Bulk) Liquid Weight

Harcros Chemicals, Inc.       

5200 Speaker Road      

Kansas City, KS  66106

$.1350       

cost per        

liquid pound

$.1450             

cost per        

liquid pound

4                          

$.1450              

$.1770             

$.1900           

$.1965

Liquid Chlorine

DPC Industries, Inc.                     

P.O. Box 24600              

Houston, TX.  77229

$627.00           

cost                     

per ton

$1047.00        

cost                     

per ton

1                     

$1047.00

Aluminum Sulfate

Chemtrade Chemicals US 

LLC                                                     

90 East Halsey Rd.        

Parisppany, NJ.  07054

$248.50

cost                     

per dry ton

$274.50          

cost                             

per dry ton

3                       

$274.50  

$325.00  

$345.00

Ortho-Polyphosphate   Drums

Ecotech Enterprises, Inc       

7100 Colonel Maynard Rd.       

Scott, AR.  72142

$5.446

cost                     

per gallon

$6.360             

cost                              

per gallon

2                         

$6.360      

$9.370 

Anhydrous Ammonia

Tanner Industries, Inc.         

735 Davisville Rd.         

Southampton, PA.  18966     

$.810

cost                     

per pound

$.880                

cost                             

per pound

1                              

$.880

Liquid Polymer WTP

SNF Polydyne, Inc.                 

1 Chemical Plant Rd.            

Riceboro, GA.  31323

$8.811          

cost                     

per gallon

$9.078              

cost                             

per gallon

1                         

$9.078

Liquid Polymer WWTP

SNF Polydyne, Inc.                 

1 Chemical Plant Rd.            

Riceboro, GA.  31323

$1.14                 

cost                     

per pound

$10.7260          

cost                             

per gallon 

($1.286         

per pound)    

1                        

$10.7260
 

CHEMICAL PURCHASES PROJECTED FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2021 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2022



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 1400 Dudley 

Avenue from a split zone of C-1 General retail commercial & R-3 Low-

density residential to all C-1 General retail commercial in order to add 

an annex to a childcare facility for after-school care (Torrence). (PWD-

Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

AGENDA DATE: 08/02/2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to rezone a tract of land from a split zone of C-1 

General retail commercial & R-3 Low-density residential to all C-1 

General retail commercial in order to add an annex to a childcare facility 

for after-school care.     

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None requested 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommends rezoning property to reconcile 

a split zone on property that was under different ownership at the time 

the zoning was imposed.  The owner wishes to expand onto a parcel 

purchased to expand their business that is required to be a commercial 

zone and to coincide with the existing zoning of the childcare facility.     

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance to rezone property from a split zone of C-1 General 

retail commercial & R-3 Low-density residential to all C-1 General retail 

commercial.   

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, deed and contract for sale, map. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 

K-286, AS AMENDED; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the 

Planning Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting that the following 

land be rezoned property from a split C-1 General retail commercial zone to R-3 Low 

density residential zone to all C-1 General retail commercial: 

 

The property is legally described as Lots Numbered One (1), Two (2), Three 

(3), and Four (4) in Block Numbered Two (2) in BOURRICANDS 

ADDITION, to the City of Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas, according 

to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume “M”, Page 148 of the Deed 

Records of Miller County, Arkansas. 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, approved said 

application and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, adopt the ordinance affecting said rezoning request;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

Ordinance No K-286, as amended, is hereby amended to rezone the above-

described property in the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, from a split C-1 General retail 

commercial & R-3 Low density residential to all C-1 General retail commercial.  This is 

solely a rezoning and no other action, conveyance, or release of interest. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of August, 2021. 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 



ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 
 

F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 
 

D A T E :  July 15, 2021 
 

S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for 08-02-2021 – Rezoning – Request 
by Shardell Torrence, Agent Darlene Stiner, 1400 Dudley Street, Texarkana, 
AR 71854-6332, to rezone a parcel of land in order to reconcile a split-zone 
of C-1 General retail commercial zone & R-3 Low-density residential zone to 
all C-1 General retail commercial zoning.  The property was not under the 
same ownership at the time of the current zoning initiation.   

  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       
 

The property is legally described as All Lots 1-4, Block 2, BOURRICANDS 1ST ADDITION, 
Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas, and is located at 1400 Dudley.  It contains 0.63 acres more 
or less. 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST:   No platting of the property or desired expansion of the existing 
facilities is allowed until the split zone is reconciled.    
 
EXISTING LAND USES:      
                                            Site:    Little Angel’s Playland Daycare 
                                          North:    Kevin B. Sedden’s D.D.S., & Assoc. Dental office 
                                            East:    Residential  
                                          South:    Residential   
                                           West:    College Hill Pharmacy Shopping center 
 

EXISTING ZONING:        
                                        Site:      C-1 General retail commercial and R-3 Low-density         
                                               residential 
                               North:      O-1 Office quiet commercial 
                                 East:      R-3 Low-density residential   
                               South:      R-3 Low-density residential 
                                West:      C-1 General retail commercial 
 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

  

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 
 
The long-term comprehensive plan shows this area as commercial adjacent to single-
family residential.  The requested zoning is not in conflict with this projection.  The 
surrounding zoning has both similar commercial zoning and R-3 Low-density zoning, that 
allows for both single-family detached and single family attached (duplex) housing types 
as well as an O-1 Quiet commercial zone that works well with commercial and residential 
zoning.  This property has been reviewed for suitability of current development for the 
location and does not pose any known adverse impact to the area.   
  

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 

Local :             Martha Street 
                  
Collector:         Dudley Street 
 
Arterial:            None 
 
Water:              6” located in Martha Street 
                         6” located in Dudley Street 
 
Sewer:              6” located in Martha Street   
 
Fire hydrant:     Located approximately 260’ away at the corner of Martha & Arthur Streets. 
   
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – “All plans, 
recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through the following 
procedure for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, ordinances, and 
regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the city, at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and proposed ordinance 
and regulations may be recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority 
vote of the entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and regulations, the 
commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and regulations to 
the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended ordinances 
and regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote 
of the entire membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and 
recommended ordinances or regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting 
in this subchapter shall be construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the 
ordinances and resolutions by a vote of a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted        plans, ordinances, and 
regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the 
county recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such 
plans, ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, June 20, 2021 edition of the Texarkana 
Gazette.  The City notified twenty-four (24) adjacent property owners by regular postal 
mail within three hundred feet (300’) as required by the Texarkana, Arkansas Code of 
Ordinances.            
 
OPPOSITION:  
 

 

None received to date.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
The Planning Commission met on June 13, 2021 and on a motion by Mr. George Coker, 
seconded by Ms. Bertha Dunn, recommended approval and by a roll call vote carried the 
motion to certify a recommendation for approval of the rezoning 5-0 with no opposition 
and two absent:  
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Yes 
George Coker Yes 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Absent  
Randall Hickerson Absent 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 

 

  
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  

The City Board is requested to adopt an ordinance to rezone the property from a split 
zone to a C-1 General retail commercial zone.    
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read three times 
before adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the second 
and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 

 
Rezoning request (C-1 & R-3) to C-1 

Prepared by the Planning Division for reference only 
 

  









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to revise the text and boundaries of the Entertainment 

District. (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

AGENDA DATE: 08/02/2021 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to revise the text and boundaries of the entertainment 

district.     

EMERGENCY 

CLAUSE: 

None requested 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommends adopting the text edits and boundary 

edits to the entertainment district.  Review of the district boundaries and 

cultural practices in the entertainment district found no adverse effects to this 

point in time have occurred by instituting the district.  Recommendations to 

clarify boundaries on East Third Street and State Line Avenue came about by 

citizen requests.  The commission also supports the addition of leased 

property of Union Pacific Railroad on the south side of Front Street bounded 

by the chain link fence as it has often been part of festivals and lends itself to 

events downtown.    

EXPENSE 

REQUIRED: 

0 

AMOUNT 

BUDGETED: 

0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance to clarify and add to the boundaries of the entertainment 

district.    

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, recommended text, email by police chief 

and fire chief, map. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 28-142 

OF THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, approved a clarification of 

and modification to the boundary lines of the entertainment district described in Section 28-142 of 

the Code of Ordinances for the City of Texarkana, and, further, recommended that the Board of 

Directors of the City of Texarkana, adopt the ordinance affecting said modification;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the second paragraph of Section 28-142 of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, Code of Ordinances, is hereby deleted and the following substituted therefor: 

 

The boundaries of the district shown on the attached map range from Stateline 

Avenue at 5th Street, west along the center of 5th Street to Walnut Street, then, south 

on Walnut Street to 3rd Street, then east along 3rd Street at the building line on the 

north side of 3rd Street, to Laurel Street; and, from there south on Laurel Street to 

Broad Street, along the center of Broad Street west to Hazel Street, then turning 

south at the center of Hazel Street (Hazel Street curves and merges into Front 

Street), to the south and east until parallel to the beginning of the property currently 

leased by the City owned by Union Pacific Railroad Company with a chain link 

fence for boundary, east to said fence, continuing along the fence south and west to 

include all of said property currently leased by the City from Union Pacific Railroad 

Company, then slightly north to the center of Front Street, then west on Front Street 

to Pine Street, then north along the east side of Pine Street merging on the north 

side of Broad Street into the center of State Line Avenue, then to the north,  along 

the centerline of N. State Line Avenue to the point of beginning at 5th Street.  

(boundary map attached; any areas herein described lying south of Broad Street 

shall not be excluded nor deemed excluded from this district as a result of the 

termination, expiration or modification of any lease (now or hereafter existing) of 

the same by the City, nor sale, assignment or other conveyance of the property by 

Union Pacific Railroad Company, its successors or assigns) 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of August, 2021. 



 

 

________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor    

 

 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



Article XI, Sec. 28-142 

The boundaries of the district shown on the attached map range from Stateline Avenue at 5th Street, west 

along the center of 5th Street to Walnut Street, then, south on Walnut Street to 3rd Street, then east along 

3rd Street at the building line on the north side of 3rd Street, to Laurel Street; and, from there south on 

Laurel Street to Broad Street, along the center of Broad Street west to Hazel Street, then turning south at 

the center of Hazel Street (Hazel Street curves and merges into Front Street), to the south and east until 

parallel to the beginning of the leased property currently leased by the City owned by Union Pacific 

Railroad Company with a chain link fence for boundary, east to said fence, continuing along the fence 

south and west to include all of said the leased property currently leased by the City from Union Pacific 

Railroad Company, then slightly north to the center of Front Street, then west on Front Street to Pine 

Street, then north along the east side of Pine Street merging on the north side of Broad Street into the 

center of State Line Avenue, then to the north,  along the centerline of N. State Line Avenue to the point 

of beginning at 5th Street.  (boundary map attached; any areas herein described lying south of Broad Street 

shall not be excluded nor deemed excluded from this district as a result of the termination, expiration or 

modification of any lease (now or hereafter existing) of the same by the City, nor sale, assignment or other 

conveyance of the property by Union Pacific Railroad Company, its successors or assigns) 

 



Article XI, Sec. 28-142 

The boundaries of the district shown on the attached map range from Stateline Avenue at 5th Street, west 

along the center of 5th Street to Walnut Street, then, south on Walnut Street to 3rd Street, then east along 

3rd Street at the building line on the north side of 3rd Street, to Laurel Street; and, from there south on 

Laurel Street to Broad Street, along the center of Broad Street west to Hazel Street, then turning south at 

the center of Hazel Street (Hazel Street curves and merges into Front Street), to the south and east until 

parallel to the beginning of the leased property owned by Union Pacific with a chain link fence for 

boundary, east to said fence, continuing along the fence south and west to include all the leased property, 

then slightly north to the center of Front Street, then west on Front Street to Pine Street, then north along 

the east side of Pine Street merging on the north side of Broad Street into the center of State Line Avenue, 

then to the north,  along the centerline of N. State Line Avenue to the point of beginning at 5th Street.  

(boundary map attached) 

 



























 

 
Update to boundaries after review 

Prepared by the Planning Division for reference only 
 

  



 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

 

 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Jay Ellington, City Manager 
FROM: Mary L. Beck, City Planner 
DATE: July 15, 2021 
  
SUBJECT: REVISION TO ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT – Adopt an ordinance to revise the 

marked boundaries of the entertainment district to the north side of Third (3rd) Street 
between Walnut and Laurel Streets, and to add to the district the land leased from 
Union Pacific Railroad in its entirely, it being bounded by a chain link fence running 
parallel to Hazel and Front Streets, and otherwise legally described in the attached 
lease agreement and other text to clarify existing boundaries.    
  

In response to a request to re-interpret the boundary line on 3rd Street by a local business owner to 
mark it on the north side adjacent to the property lines thereby allowing inclusion of other 
commercial buildings, and recognition of the need to include the leased property on the south side 
of Front Street this matter is under consideration.  When establishing the entertainment district, 
looking forward the Planning Commission anticipated possible revisions to the district.  The 
Texarkana, Arkansas, police chief, fire chief and public works director have all been contacted for 
comments on this revision and on the state of the entertainment district.  Their comments of 
neutrality or support are attached or they plan to be present to respond to any questions, but no 
negative comments have been received.    
  
EXISTING 
ZONING: 

Site:     C-2 Central Business district & W-1 Wholesale and Warehousing district.  

  
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
 The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – 

“All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted 
through the following procedure for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
 (A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, 
ordinances, and regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city, at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 

 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and 
proposed ordinance and regulations may be recommended as presented, or in 
modified form, by a majority vote of the entire commission.   
 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/


 
 
 

 
www.arkansas.txkusa.org 

A t t a c h m e n t :   m a p  w i t h  p r o p o s e d  r e v i s i o n s  

(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and 
regulations, the commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended 
ordinances of and regulations to the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 
 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended 
ordinances and regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, 
or, by a majority vote of the entire membership, may, by ordinance or 
resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances or regulations 
submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and 
resolutions by a vote of a majority of the council.  
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted plans, ordinances, 
and regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk 
shall file, with the county recorder of the counties in which territorial jurisdiction 
is being exercised such plans, ordinances, and regulations as pertain to the 
territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, June 20, 2021 edition of the 
Texarkana Gazette.   

  
OPPOSITION: None to date  
  
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:    
 
The Planning Commission met on June 13, 2021 to consider the request to: 1) review the success 
of the entertainment district; 2) to clarify the boundaries that impact participation by some 
businesses; 3) to clarify the adjacent boundary with the Texas downtown entertainment district; and, 
4) to add the area leased from Union Pacific Railroad that has been used for entertainment events 
during the previous several years.  On a motion by Mr. Boots Thomas, seconded by Ms. Bertha 
Dunn, the commission voted to certify a recommendation for approval by a 5-0 roll call vote with no 
opposition and two absent: 
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Yes 
George Coker Yes 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Absent  
Randall Hickerson Absent 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
  

 

REQUESTED ACTION BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  

The City Board is requested to adopt an ordinance to revise the entertainment district boundaries 
including clarifying text.  The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be 
read three times before adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at 
the second and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   
 

http://www.arkansas.txkusa.org/





	Top
	1.	Employee Service Awards
	item_1_08022021_employee service awards

	2.	Nix Creek Study
	Nix Creek Update

	3.	Minutes
	item__08022021_ccd_minutes
	07192021_minutes

	4.	Chemicals for Water and Wastewater Treatment
	08022021_twu_chemicals
	item_4_08022021_Resolution for Texarkana Water Utilities Chemicals
	Chemical Bids Tabulation

	5.	08022021_pw_pl_rezoning_1400_dudley_ street
	item_08022021_pwdpl_rezone 1400 Dudley Ave
	item_5_08022021_Ordinance_Rezoning_Dudley
	Memo to CM for childcare ezone (1)
	map meeting - 1400 DUDLEY
	deed &amp; contract for little angels on dudley

	6.	08022021_pw_pl_entertainment_district_revision
	item_08022021_pwdpl_entertainement district
	item_6_08022021_ordinance_entertainment district
	item_6_08022021_new language for BOD ordinance entertainment district GMM Revision
	language for BOD ordinance entertainment district
	item_6_08022021_lease agreement
	map et updates for 2021
	Memo-cm entertainment district revisions
	emails from chief bennett &amp; chief fletcher

	Bottom

